
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 25 October 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Companies 
Committee  

     
 

 

Tuesday, 2 November 2021 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Philip Knowles, 
Councillor Susan Sandall, Councillor Ian Stokes and Councillor Mark Whittington 

 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2021 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
To consider updates on Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

(Page 9) 

5.   EnvironmentSK Ltd - Appointment of Director Arrangements 
This report proposes changes to the director arrangements for 
Environment SK Ltd and Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd. 
 

(Pages 11 - 13) 

6.   Gravitas Housing Ltd and Aubers Ridge Management Ltd - Director 
Appointments 
This report proposes changes to the director arrangements for Aubers 
Ridge Management Ltd and Gravitas Housing Ltd. 
 

(Pages 15 - 17) 

7.   Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
 

(Pages 19 - 20) 

8.   Gravitas Housing Ltd - update 
This report provides an update with respect to the Wherry’s Lane, Bourne 
Development Project.   
 

(Pages 21 - 23) 

 
  

a) EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 Under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public may 

be excluded from the meeting during any listed items of business, on the grounds that if 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

they were to be present, exempt information could be disclosed to them as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 

  b) Appendix 1 
 To consider the exempt appendices of the report. 
 

(Pages 25 - 27) 

9.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

Minutes 
 

Companies Committee 
 

Tuesday, 21 September 2021, 2.00 pm 
 

Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham.  NG31 6PZ 

 
 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Helen Crawford  
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
 

Non-Committee Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Virginia Moran 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture & Visitor Economy) 
Councillor Robert Reid (Cabinet Member for Housing & Property) 
Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance) 
 
Company Directors in attendance 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke (LeisureSK Ltd) 
Richard Wyles (Gravitas Housing Ltd) 
David Monkhouse (Non-Executive Director, LeisureSK Ltd)   
 

Officers in attendance 
 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Gary Smith (Director of Commercial and Operations) 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Karen Whitfield (Head of Leisure) 
Alison Hall-Wright (Head of Finance) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
 

11. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bob Adams, Philip 
Knowles and Susan Sandall. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
Councillor Helen Crawford had been appointed as a substitute for Councillor 
Susan Sandall and Councillor Phil Dilks had been appointed as a substitute for 
Councillor Philip Knowles. 

 
12. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none. 

 
13. Minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2021 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2021 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record, subject to the following amendment: 
 

• Councillor Philip Knowles attendance at the meeting be recorded. 
 

14. Updates from the previous meeting 
 

A Member asked for confirmation on when the Committee could report profit or 
loss of Gravitas Housing Ltd within public session. 
 
The Committee was informed that once Gravitas Housing Ltd was no longer an 
ongoing trading concern, there would be a debate on the final performance of the 
Company. 
 
It was noted that the Committee would receive a completed account once the last 
Unit had been sold. 
 
ACTION 1 
 
The final performance of Gravitas Housing Ltd be added to the Committee’s 
Work Programme, a date to be confirmed.  

 
15.  LeisureSK Ltd Performance Report 

 
The Director for Growth and Culture presented the report on behalf of the Deputy 
Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Leisure. 
 
LeisureSK Ltd commenced the management of the Council’s leisure facilities in 
January 2021.  In line with Government guidelines, due to the covid-19 Pandemic 
leisure centres remained closed until a gradual reopening, which commenced in 
late March 2021.  Restrictions were fully lifted in July 2021. 
 
Whilst the leisure centres remained closed and activities were limited the 
Directors of LeisureSK Ltd ensured that appropriate steps were taken to mitigate 
the impact.  This included the appropriate use of the staff furlough scheme and 
renting out the Table Tennis Centre at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre, as one 
of the main vaccination sites for Lincolnshire. 

4



 
 

 
A Director of Leisure SK Ltd noted that the Company was set up after the end of 
the Council’s contract with 1Life had ended.  Arranging a contract with a new 
provider would have been a great risk within the leisure industry, during the 
current climate.  Employees were transferred to LeisureSK Ltd and a business 
plan was formed.  Following a positive start, the Company would operate as long 
as was required. 
 
The non-executive Director was introduced to the Committee, Mr Monkhouse, 
and he described experience over a 38 year career within the leisure industry.  
He was looking forward to taking a key role leading on health and safety and 
provide a ‘check and challenge’ to operational processes. 

 
The Director was asked how the current position at LeisureSK Ltd compared with 
the national position.  LeisureSK Ltd information was not immediately available 
but the national position was confirmed that before the pandemic each leisure 
customer generated 34p, however currently each customer costed an average of 
£6.65.  Cost recovery pre-pandemic was 112% but was now approximately 41%. 
 
It was estimated that Leisure Centres were currently receiving 70% participation 
when compared to pre-covid levels.  This was considered to be largely due to 
running costs, exacerbated by a rise in cleaning responsibilities.  An officer 
advised that through LeisureSK Ltd, the Council would have support from local 
healthcare services to promote health and wellbeing to the residents of the 
District. 
 
The strengths of LeisureSK Ltd were considered to be industry knowledge and 
experience, a stronger identity was being developed to ensure the facilities were 
being used to their greatest potential. 
 

• A Member asked what made LeisureSK Ltd stand out against competitors. 
 
Members were advised that the onus had previously been on social care and 
acute primary health, an integrated care system had been developed which 
stressed the importance of health and wellbeing.  This was hoped to be operating 
by April 2022 with LeisureSK Ltd, widening the scope and supporting health and 
fitness of residents through physical activity, having invested in parks and open 
spaces too. 
 

• Clarification was requested on the impact of the closure of Deepings 
Leisure Centre, on the five-year Business Plan. 
 

Refurbishment options for Deepings Leisure Centre were being considered and 
would be brought before scrutiny, in due course. The impact of the site’s 
temporary closure on the business plan was currently being considered.  User 
panels had been set up for each leisure centre, but the process was delayed due 
to covid restrictions.  
 

5



 
 

The Business Plan had also considered Leisure Improvement Feasibility works 
that looked at potential required investment to maintain Bourne, Stamford and 
Grantham leisure centres.  

 

•  What substantial works were required to keep all sites operational and what 
was being done to prevent possible future enforced closure. 

 
The Committee were advised that the impact of the temporary closure of 
Deepings leisure Centre was being monitored.  It was emphasised that 
LeisureSK Ltd was responsible for the upkeep of the internal structure and 
facilities of the buildings 

 

• Clarity was requested on the essential maintenance to structure of the 
buildings and requested what thew the Council’s responsibility was for this 
and where the liability became that of LeisureSK Ltd.   

 
It was confirmed by an officer that the Council was responsible for any major 
structural costs.  
 

• A request was made for figures which indicated the financial position for 
LeisureSK Ltd.  

 

•  It was noted that to align the accounting year of LeisureSK Ltd with the 
Council, there would be a 15 month financial reporting year for LeisureSK 
Ltd.  

 

•  The use of Sports Leisure Consultancy (SLC) was queried and if a 
procurement process had been followed. 
 

LeisureSK Ltd adhered to financial regulations that mirrored the Council’s and 
public procurement rules were followed. SLC had provided a great deal of 
knowledge and experience whilst supporting LeisureSK Ltd.  
 

• Clarification was sought as to how user capacity for using services was 
monitored. 

 
The Committee were informed that every customer had a leisure card that they 
used each visit.  The card registered the services the customer accessed and the 
number of visits made.  It was emphasised that the analysis was based on every 
user and not just those paying a monthly membership fee.  Assessing the data 
collected reflected that there was a shortage of available space during the 
evenings. 
 

• What had been done to share the maintenance fee more fairly for a playing 
field at the Deepings. 

 
A meeting had been arranged with the Deepings School, whom benefitted from 
its use, to discuss the appropriate sharing of cost.  It was clarified that the 

6



 
 

Deepings Rugby Club no longer held the lease and was to pay per usage.  
Further clarification was provided on the revised Business Plan, it would 
incorporate the refurbishment options for the Deepings Leisure Centre.  It was 
anticipated that those amendments would be brought to the Companies 
Committee in January 2022. 
 

•   A question was asked as to how LeisureSK Ltd was involved in the 
Council’s aim to reduce carbon emissions. 

 
As the company was responsible for paying for utilities, they would therefore be 
involved in any efficiency measures the Council were to put in in place. 
 

•  A question was asked as to what percentage of people who used Deeping 
Leisure Centre, had recently used Bourne or Stamford facilities. A concern 
was raised by Members that travelling to other facilities may not be possible 
for everyone. 

 
An officer confirmed that the figures were available and would be shared with 
Members.  
 

• Members requested that the hard work was acknowledged into renting out 
the Table Tennis Centre at Grantham Meres as a vaccination centre and in 
securing a payment of £320,000 through the leisure recovery fund. 
 

ACTION 2 
 
That details of the usage of all facilities, following the closure of the 
Deepings Leisure Centre, be communicated to Members. 
 
AGREED: 

 
That the current progress of LeisureSK Ltd be noted against the approved 
Business Plan for 2021/22. 

 
16. Aubers Ridge Management Company Ltd 

 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance presented the report to the 
Committee. 
 
Aubers Ridge Management Company Ltd, was a Management Company that 
was set up to complement the Wherry’s Lane residential development project.  
The Company currently had one registered Director, following the resignation of 
its second Director.  As the Company was intrinsically linked to the Wherry’s 
Lane, Bourne development it was recommended that one further Director from 
Gravitas Housing Development Ltd be appointed alongside the Cabinet Member 
for Housing and Property. 

 

7



 
 

The Committee were informed that having two Directors provided resilience and 
capacity.  It was also noted that the Company was currently dormant, until all the 
properties on the development were sold. 
 
The following points and questions were raised: 
 

• How long were the leaseholds?  

• It was confirmed that the leases held on the properties were for 125 years. 
 
Officers advised that the owners of the freehold properties were now paying 
service charges through a third party, on behalf of Aubers Ridge and Gravitas 
Housing Ltd.  The transfer would happen from the Council, following the sale of 
the final property. 
 
The recommendations of the report were proposed and seconded.  
 
Following a vote, they were AGREED. 
 
Councillors Ashley Baxter and Phil Dilks requested that their votes against the 
appointments be recorded. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That Councillors Barry Dobson and Robert Reid be appointed as Directors 
to Aubers Ridge Management Company Ltd. 

 
17. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 

 
The Committee noted the contents of its Work Programme for 2021 – 2022.  

 
18. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

There were none. 
 

19. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 15:31 
 
 

8



Action Sheet 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 21 September 2021 meeting of the Companies Committee. 
 

min 
no 

Agenda item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

14 Updates from 
previous 
meeting 

Final performance of 
Gravitas Housing Ltd to be 
added to Committee Work 
Plan 

Democratic 
Services/ 
Richard Wyles 
(Assistant 
Director of 
Finance (s151 
Officer)) 

Added to the Work Programme – under 
items to be allocated 
 
A date for this to be considered, will be 
confirmed after the last unit is sold.  

COMPLETE 
 
 
Date to be 
confirmed 

15 LeisureSK Ltd 
Business Plan 
update  

Details of customer usage 
of all leisure facilities 
following closure of 
Deepings Leisure Centre – 
to be communicated to all 
Members 

Karen Whitfield 
(Head of 
Leisure) 

 
A communication detailing requested 
information is to be sent to Members.  

 
Information to 
be sent 
before 
29/10/21 

 

9

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
2 November 2021  

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing 

           

 

Appointment of Director Arrangements 

This report proposes changes to the director arrangements for Environment SK Ltd and 
Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd. 

 

 

Report Author 

Gary Smith, Director – Commercial & Operations 

 
 01476 406344 

  Gary.Smith@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Well Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance  21 October 2021 

Approved by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 21 October 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance and Licensing 

21 October 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Companies Committee is asked to approve the appointment of Councillor Robert 
Reid, Cllr Adam Stokes, Cllr Paul Wood and Claire Moses as directors to 
Environment SK Ltd. 

2. Companies Committee is asked to approve the appointment of Councillor Robert 
Reid, Cllr Adam Stokes, Cllr Paul Wood, Ken Lyon and Claire Moses as directors to 
Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd.  

 

11

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 It is proposed that new Directors are appointed to Environment SK Ltd and Environment 

SK Commercial Services Ltd following the recent changes to the Cabinet Member 

portfolios, the resignation of Cllr Dr Peter Moseley from the Cabinet and the retirement of 

Mark Jones. 

1.2 Environment SK Ltd and Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd are wholly owned 

South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) trading companies.  Environment SK Ltd provide 

grounds maintenance services to SKDC and also undertakes grounds maintenance 

services for other public and private organisations.   

1.3 Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd is not active.  Environment SK Commercial 

Services Ltd was established at the same time as Environment SK Ltd with the view that if 

the other public and private organisation business increased, the work would start to be 

undertaken via the commercial services company.  This would ensure that Environment 

SK Ltd complied with the local authority trading company ‘Teckal’ requirements.  ‘Teckal’ 

companies must ensure that no more than 20% of the company’s activities should be work 

undertaken for other organisations (ie not for the Council).  Environment SK Ltd is 

currently trading and providing services to private companies, parish/town councils and 

others but at the moment this is less than 20% of the work they undertake.  Although 

Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd is not active, it is a company registered at 

Companies House so it is proposed that directors are appointed. 

1.4 It is proposed that Cllr Robert Reid, who has taken on grounds maintenance within his 

Cabinet portfolio, Cllr Adam Stokes, Cllr Paul Wood and Claire Moses are made directors 

of both companies.  Claire Moses is Head of Revenues and Benefits with good financial 

skills and experience of customer services. 

1.5 Ken Lyon, SKDC Assistant Chief Executive, is already a director of Environment SK Ltd 

and it is proposed that he is also added as a director of Environment SK Commercial 

Services Ltd. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Companies Committee is asked to consider and approve the addition of the directors as 

set out in this report. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Without further director appointments, Environment SK Ltd would be left with only one 

director and Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd with no directors.   

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To approve the proposed directors for Environment SK Ltd and Environment SK 

Commercial Services Ltd. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 To replace departing directors. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Should the Companies Committee approve the recommendation, then Companies House 

records will be updated accordingly. 

12



 

 
 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer  

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee, Members are asked to 

approve the appointment of the proposed directors to Environment SK Ltd and 

Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 No significant issues identified. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No significant issues identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 No significant issues identified. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 No significant issues identified. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 No significant issues identified. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 None. 

15 Appendices 

15.1 None. 

 

 

 

 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
2 November 2021  

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing 

           

 

Appointment of Director Arrangements 

This report proposes changes to the director arrangements for Aubers Ridge Management Ltd 
and Gravitas Housing Ltd. 

 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

 
 01476 406210 

  r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Well Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Gill Goddard, Senior Accountant  21 October 2021 

Approved by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 21 October 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance and Licensing 

21 October 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Companies Committee is asked to approve the appointment of Councillor Robert 
Reid as a director to Aubers Ridge Management Company Ltd and Gravitas 
Housing Ltd.  

 

15

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Due to recent changes in the portfolio allocation of the Cabinet members it is necessary to 

update the director arrangements for Aubers Ridge Management Company Ltd and 

Gravitas Housing Ltd.  Councillor Robert Reid is the Cabinet member for Housing and 

Property and so being a director for the housing companies sits within the broader housing 

portfolio responsibility.  Councillor Barry Dobson will be removed from the Board upon the 

appointment of Councillor Robert Reid. 

1.2 This proposal is addition to Councillor Kelham Cooke and Richard Wyles who are both 

directors of Aubers Ridge Management Company Ltd and Gravitas Housing Ltd. 

 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1  Companies Committee is asked to consider and approve the addition of Councillor Robert 

Reid as set out in this report. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The recommendation set out in the report complies with the requirements of the Articles of 

Association for each company.   

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 This is set out in the report. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 This is set out in the report. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Should the Companies Committee approve the recommendation, then Companies House 

records will be updated accordingly. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer  

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee, members are asked to 

approve the appointment of Councillor Robert Reid for Aubers Ridge Management 

Company Ltd and Gravitas Housing Ltd. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 None. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

16



 

 
 

11.1 None. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 N/a 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 None. 

15 Appendices 

15.1 None. 

 

 

 

 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Companies Committee: Work Programme 2021/22 

No  Item Meeting 
Date 

Lead Officer Requirements Notes  
(including reporting 
timeframes) 

1.  EnvironmentSK Ltd  
 

2 Nov 
2021 

EnvironmentSK 
Ltd Board 

• Review of Business Plan with 
management figures 

Six monthly update 

2.  Gravitas Housing Ltd- 
Update 

 Richard Wyles, 
Assistant Director 
of Finance 

• Business update inc external benefits 
of company 

 

3.  EnvironmentSK Ltd 
Final 2020/21 
Accounts 

 
 
 
 

 25 Jan  
2022 

EnvironmentSK 
Ltd Board 

• Final 2020/21 accounts   

4.  InvestSK Ltd InvestSK Ltd 
Board 
 

• Review of Business Plan (including 
the Stakeholder Management and 
Communication Strategy) 

 

Six monthly update 
 

5.  LeisureSK Ltd LeisureSK Ltd 
Board 

• Revised Review of Business Plan  

6.  EMBC Update 26 Apr 
2022 

Anne-Marie 
Coulthard, 
Assistant 
Director – 
Operations & 
Public 
Protection  

• Review of the East Midlands Building 
Consultancy Business Plan 

Annual update 

 

Items to be allocated  

Final performance of Gravitas Housing Ltd 
 

Date TBC 

19

A
genda Item

 7



 

 

20



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
2 November 2021 

Report of: Gravitas Housing Ltd  

   

         
  

 

Gravitas Housing Limited 
This report provides an update with respect to the Wherry’s Lane Bourne development project.   
 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Director Gravitas Housing Ltd 

 
01476 406210 

 r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Well Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director Gravitas Housing Ltd 21 October 2021  

Signed off by: Kelham Cooke, Director Gravitas Housing Ltd 22 October 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 

1. Companies Committee is asked to note the update on the Wherry’s Lane Bourne 
Development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

Background to the Report 

1.1 Members are reminded that Gravitas Housing Limited is a wholly Council owned company 

limited by shares that was incorporated on 30 January 2017 in order to deliver quality new 

housing in the District.  To date one scheme at Wherry’s Lane Bourne has been approved 

by the shareholders (the Council) and financing for this scheme was approved by Council 

on 2 March 2017.  The Business Plan that set out the delivery plan for the Wherry’s Lane 

development and covered the period 2017 – 2021 was approved by the Shareholder 

Committee on 9 January 2017.  The vision was agreed as ‘To develop and manage quality 

homes in the district supported by responsive and customer focused services that 

customers’ value’. 

1.2 There are a number of positive outcomes arising from the development including: 

• Regeneration of a town centre brownfield site 

• Creation of 25 town centre homes for in-town living 

• Council tax and New Homes Bonus receipts arising from the development  

Current Update 

1.3 In January 2020 Gravitas Housing Ltd completed a 25-unit development in Bourne. The 

development provides five town houses and twenty apartments across 2 blocks. The 

marketing of the available units is with Pygott and Crone who are working exclusively with 

Gravitas Housing to sell the remaining units.   

1.4  The affordable housing provision has been met with off-site commuted sums and these 

are being delivered as part of the HRA development new build programme. There are also 

4 units at the development that are subject to discounted market sales (i.e. 80% of market 

price) to fulfil the s106 requirements under the Government’s Help to Buy initiative.   

1.5 At the time of compiling the report the following position can be confirmed: 

 Apartments Townhouses 

Originally available 20 5 

Sold 10 0 

Reserved 7 0 

Remaining 3 5 

 

1.6 It has been reported previously that the townhouses are proving the most challenging to 

dispose of.  Following a meeting with Pygott and Crone it was agreed that the valuations 

would be reviewed and updated accordingly.  Following this review the valuations for the 

town houses have been reduced by a range of £17.5k to £25k per property.  This has 

reduced the overall sale projection of the town houses by £100k  which will affect the 

overall profitability of the project.  This has been updated in the projected profit and loss 

account   However, since the reduced valuations have been advertised there has been 

renewed interest in the available properties with seven viewings already having taken 

place with a number scheduled for the forthcoming period.   

1.7 The Council has a commercial loan in place with Gravitas to the value of £1.9m at a 

commercial interest rate which attracted an overall interest charge of £178k.  However in 

order to reduce this charge, Gravitas has taken the decision to make a part repayment of 

22



 
 

£900k and this has reduced the interest payable by £24k.  This has had a positive impact 

on the overall scheme costs and reduced the scheme loss accordingly.  This is shown at 

Appendix A.   

 

Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 None. 

Available Options Considered 

3.1 These are set out in the report. 

Preferred Option 

4.1 This is set out in the report. 

Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The current Business Plan is still valid as it focuses on the delivery of the Wherry’s Lane 

project.  This report sets out the progress being made.   

Appendices 

6.1 Appendix 1 – Projected Profit and Loss for Wherry’s Lane development  

 

 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

 

 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

25

Agenda Item 8b
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2021
	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 EnvironmentSK Ltd - Appointment of Director Arrangements
	6 Gravitas Housing Ltd and Aubers Ridge Management Ltd - Director Appointments
	7 Work Programme 2021 - 2022
	8 Gravitas Housing Ltd - update
	8b Appendix 1

